


CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED ( “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment
risk may be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability
nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.

Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the
business sectors or countries in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due
and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market
more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may
be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM. The principal
means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the internet website operated by the Stock
Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazetted
newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM
website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report. This report, for which the directors (“Directors”)
of JF Household Furnishings Limited (“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (i) the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading; (ii) there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and (iii) all opinions expressed in this
report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that
are fair and reasonable.

(i)
(ii) (iii)
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board of Directors (“Board”), I am pleased to present the annual report of JF Household Furnishings
Limited (“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)  and its audited financial results for the financial
year ended 31 December 2006.

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2006, the Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$193.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 2.9% from the fiscal year ended 31 December 2005. The decline was
mainly due to an inventory reduction exercise by a major customer of the Group.

In 2006, the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders was approximately HK$20.7 million, representing a 12.7%
decrease as compared to that of 2005. The Group’s gross profit margin in 2006 was 18.3%, decreasing from
20.4% in 2005. The slight decline in the gross profit margin percentage was mainly due to the rise in stainless
steel prices and the appreciation of the Renminbi (“RMB”) currency.

Business Review
Year 2006 was a challenging year for the Group. The Group faced an increasing cost pressure as the prices of
stainless steel rose steeply and the RMB currency also rose faster than the year before. The management of the
Group has taken steps to minimise the impact, including using alternative materials to lower the costs.

Year 2006 was also a year of investment for the Group. The Group continued to expand its production capacity
and to invest time and effort to build a larger platform for more diversified products and customer base.

During the year, the Group completed a new building, adding 5,000 meter square (“m2”) to the existing production
plant. The Group also started to construct a new plant on the piece of land acquired at the end of 2005 to house
the new timber production lines. The new plant will have a floor area of 30,000 m2, which is twice the size of the
existing plant.

To prepare for an ambitious expansion in the new timber household products, the Group started a new pilot line
for timber production. The pilot line had been fully tested and product samples have been approved by customer.
Regular delivery of the pilot line started in August 2006 of the year under review and monthly delivery has been
steadily increasing to around RMB 3 million per month during the last quarter of year 2006.

In order to expand the Group’s business and customer base, 12 new products for sales in the metal area, and 13
new products for sales in the timber area had been successfully developed. In addition, one significant potential
European customer had commenced to perform a review process on the Group. The Group will strive to become
a qualified supplier of this new potential customer.

During the year, the Group spent substantial efforts and resources to develop a larger product range and customer
base. These efforts were cost orientated and created impact on the bottom line results. However, the management
is confident that the impact would only affect the Group in short term as the completion of the 30,000 m2 new plant
will provide the Group with sufficient production capacity and rooms for expansion for both of the stainless steel
products and newly developed metal and/or wooden products.
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Outlook and Future Prospects
Year 2007 is the beginning of a new chapter for the Group. With the expected completion of the 30,000 m2 new
production plant in March 2007, the Group’s production capacities will be substantially increased and a good
foundation has been laid for the growth and diversification in the coming years.

The pilot production in the timber line has been very encouraging with satisfactory remarks from the customer.
The Group is ready for a significant expansion in this new area. In response to the suggestion of our key customer,
the Group had accelerated the order of new equipment and the completion of the new plant. Equipment for the
two new lines has arrived in the plant in March 2007. The Group’s management is therefore confident that a
significant growth of business will come in year 2007.

The completion of the new plant will also be beneficial to the Group as a whole for the following areas:

1. relocation of the timber line to the new location will release space for stainless steel products.

2. additional space will also allow the Group to set up new lines of production for new customers as the
Group has a policy of not mixing production for each customer.

3. the Group’s plan to diversify into metal products other than stainless steel will also require a new production
line in a separate area.

Several new products have been developed for the stainless steel division, and initial indications from the key
customer were positive. It is expected that these new products will generate significant growth for the Group in
the stainless steel area in year 2007.

The appreciation of RMB continued to affect the costs for the Group. Management will take all necessary and
available steps to minimise the costs associated with the appreciation of RMB.

With the necessary investment actions of 2006 behind us, the Directors are optimistic that in year 2007, the
Group will retrieve the trend of growth with the mid to long term strategic business development plan being
implemented and actualized.

APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board, I would like to express our sincere appreciation to all our investors, customers, partners
and shareholders for their ongoing support to the Group. I would also like to thank my colleagues and staff for
their invaluable contributions throughout the year.

Yan Siu Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2007
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Year ended 31 December
2003 2004 2005 2006
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

Results

Turnover 84,087,159 145,431,997 199,625,181 193,902,367
Profit attributable to

shareholders of the Company 13,386,962 18,876,904 23,659,231 20,662,883

Assets and Liabilities

Total assets 63,509,182 84,794,832 116,591,011 132,972,559
Total liabilities 52,553,335 59,490,978 41,436,610 43,448,295

Equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company 10,955,847 25,303,854 75,154,401 89,524,264

Earnings per share

Basic N/A 0.14 0.17 0.12
Diluted N/A N/A 0.17 0.12
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84,087,159 145,431,997 199,625,181 193,902,367
13,386,962 18,876,904 23,659,231 20,662,883

63,509,182 84,794,832 116,591,011 132,972,559
52,553,335 59,490,978 41,436,610 43,448,295

10,955,847 25,303,854 75,154,401 89,524,264

0.14 0.17 0.12
0.17 0.12



10

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Annual Report 2006 2006

JF H
ousehold

 Furnishing
s Lim

ited

Results of Operations
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2006, the Group reported a turnover of approximately HK$193.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 2.9% from the fiscal year ended 2005. Gross profit margin dropped to
18.3%, slightly lower than that of 20.4% achieved last year, mainly because of a steep increase in the stainless
steel price.

Stainless steel (type 304 (“Type 304”)) price increased from an average of RMB19,400 in January 2006 to
RMB36,900 in December 2006. To lessen the impact of such steep increase, it was mutually agreed between the
Group and the Group’s key customer that a more affordable stainless steel material (type 430) was used in place
of Type 304. The use of a lower grade material has the effect of a lower turnover for the same quantity of goods
shipped.

A major inventory reduction exercise by the Group’s key customer also lowered the Group’s turnover in 2006. The
order lead time for this major customer changed from four weeks previously to one week during the year under
review. This shift had slowed down the orders significantly for the first half of the year.

Distribution costs increased to approximately HK$2.5 million or 61.9%, mainly due to higher transportation costs
and new promotional expenses. Transportation costs increased by approximately HK$590,000, or 57.7% due to
higher energy costs and higher transportation costs related to the new timber products. In order to diversify
customer base, the Group also spent approximately HK$220,000 participating in two trade shows; one in Italy
and one in Guangzhou.

Administrative expenses increased from approximately HK$10.8 million in 2005 to approximately HK$11.5 million
during the year under review mainly due to higher staff costs related to expansion and higher exchange losses.
A faster appreciation of the RMB resulted in an exchange loss of approximately HK$2.2 million, compared to the
loss of approximately HK$617,000 in 2005.

Finance charges dropped slightly as funds raised from listing in the Stock Exchange improved the liquidity of the
Group.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Funding and Treasury Policy
As at 31 December 2006, the Group had bank and cash balances of approximately HK$9.4 million (2005:
approximately HK$13.6 million) and net current assets of approximately HK$43.0 million, about the same level of
2005: approximately HK$44.6 million. Non-current assets increased by approximately HK$15.9 million to
approximately HK$46.5 million in the financial year 2006. The increase was mainly due to the acquisition of a new
piece of land and the construction of a new plant.

As at 31 December 2006, the Group had current liabilities of approximately HK$43.4 million, about the same level
as that of year 2005.

Most of the trading transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group were denominated in RMB, US Dollars and
Hong Kong Dollars. The Group adopted a conservative treasury policy with no foreign exchange contracts, interest
or currency swaps or other financial derivatives for hedging purposes.

Bank Borrowings
Particulars of bank borrowings and charges on the Group’s assets are set out in the note 22 to the financial
statements.

Gearing Ratio
The Group’s gearing ratio, which was derived from the total borrowings to total assets, increased to 19.2%, up
from 13.6% in 2005, as the Group had increased its borrowing to finance the construction of the new plant.
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Future Plans for Material Investments
Save as disclosed in this report and the Company’s Prospectus dated 5 October 2005 (“Prospectus”), the Company
had no material acquisition or capital expenditure plan as of 31 December 2006.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2006, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of bills of exchange discounted to a bank
with recourse amounting to approximately HK$900,000 (2005: HK$ Nil).

Segmental information
The information on the geographical segmentation of the Group is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

Subsequent Events
No subsequent events occurred after 31 December 2006, which may have significant effects on the assets and
liabilities of future operations of the Group.

Foreign Exchange Exposure
All transactions of the Group are denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollars or US Dollars. As RMB has been
appreciating faster recently, the Group’s exchange losses will be larger as a large part of the Group’s revenue are
denominated in US Dollars. The Management is taking steps to minimize the losses from the appreciation of the
RMB currency.

Employees and Remuneration Policy
As at 31 December 2006, the Group employed approximately 713 staff in the PRC and Hong Kong, representing
an increase of 92 staff from 31 December 2005. The increase in staff was mainly attributable to the Group’s
expansion in the PRC operations. The Group’s remuneration to employees, including Directors’ emoluments,
decreased by approximately HK$0.87 million to approximately HK$16.6 million for the current fiscal year, as a
result of a charge of HK2.35 million from the granting of employee share options. The Group reviews employee
remuneration annually and rewards its employee with reference to the length of services and performance. The
Group also grants share options and bonuses to employees of the Group at the discretion of the Directors and
based on the financial performance of the Group.

Capital Structure
Since the listing of the Company’s shares on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 13 October 2005, there has been no
change in the capital structure of the Company. The share capital of the Company comprises only ordinary
shares.

Compliance Adviser’s Interest
During year 2006, the Group had appointed a new compliance adviser. Following the resignation of Deloitte &
Touche Corporate Finance Limited with effect on 6 June 2006, Tanrich Capital Limited (“Tanrich”) had been
appointed a new compliance adviser of the Company with effect on 15 September 2006.

As at 31 December 2006, neither Tanrich nor its directors, employees or associates, as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules, had any interest in the securities of the Company or right to subscribe for or to nominate person to
subscribe for securities of the Company.

Pursuant to the compliance adviser’s agreement dated 15 September 2006 which was entered into between the
Company and Tanrich, Tanrich has been appointed as the compliance adviser to the Company as required under
the GEM Listing Rules at a fee for the period commenced from 15 September 2006.

Competing Interest
None of the Directors, management shareholders or their respective associates (as defined in GEM Listing Rules),
had any interests in any business which compete or may compete with the Company or any other conflicts of
interest which any such person may have with the Company.
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In compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, the Company sets out below a summary of actual business progress

as measured against the business objectives set out in the Prospectus.

For the period from 1 January 2006 to 30 June 2006 (the “First Relevant Period”)

Business Objectives for the First Relevant Period as

stated in the Prospectus

Expand production plant and facilities

• Construct the 1st phase of the new production

plant with total gross floor area of approximately

15,000 m2 on the new piece of land.

Product diversification

• Purchase new production machineries and

facilities and furnishings and home products and

accessories using both stainless steel and other

types of steel.

Explore new business opportunities

• Expand sales depar tment to handle the

expanding PRC market.

• Participate in home furnishings trade fairs.

Improve the overall management systems

• Strengthen the production management system

and implement the ISO9000 standard.

• Purchase new computer hardware and software

to facilitate better internal control.

Actual Business Progress

— A new production plant with 30,000 m2 to be

completed by end of 2006 is being built on the

new 44,105 m2 land site.

— A new PET welding machine has been bought

to improve the welding process of the stainless

steel product.

— A pilot run wooden furniture production line

capable of batch type production has been in

place and already in production.

— A separate marketing department had been set

up to handle new customers group. Has started

discussion with more than seven furniture

retailers and wholesalers in North America and

across Europe, including UK, Germany and Italy.

— Participated in the Italian furniture trade show

and the Guangzhou trade fair.

— Engaged a Chinese consultant firm to implement

the ISO 9000 system.

— Purchased 17 new computers and set up a new

LAN system linking all computers in the Yuyao

Factory.
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For the period from 1 July 2006 to 31 December 2006 (the “Second Relevant Period”).

Business Objectives for the Second Relevant
Period as stated in the Prospectus

Expand production plant and facilities
• Purchase new facilities for the first phase of the

production plant including power supplies, fire
prevention facilities, and office renovation.

• Set up automatic production facilities.

Product diversification
• Complete the set up for production using other

types of steel.

Explore new business opportunities
• Promote the brand name of the Group by

advertising in home furnishings magazines.

Improve the overall management systems and control
systems
• Strengthen the production management system

and implement the ISO9000 standard.

• Purchase new computer hardware and software
to facilitate better internal control.

Actual Business Progress

— The const ruct ion of  the new 30,000m 2.
production plant is in progress and near
completion.

— New equipment has been ordered.

— Continue to add various facilities for production
using other types of steel and timber.

— Appoint an American company to be the Group’s
agent to find new customers and promote the
Group’s products in the USA.

— Appoint a German company to implement the
certification of ISO9000 and ISO14000.

— Established intranet within the PRC operation,
and system for electronic declaration of import/
export license.
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Executive Directors
Mr. Yan Siu Wai, aged 51, is one of the co-founders and Chairman of the Group. Mr. Yan is responsible for the
strategic planning, corporate development and supervision of overall management of the Group. Mr. Yan graduated
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic) in 1976 with a higher
diploma in production engineering. In 1998, he also obtained a master degree in Science (Engineering Business
Management) from the University of Warwick, the United Kingdom. Mr. Yan is a member of the American Institute
of Industrial Engineers and American Society of Heating Refrigerating and Air-conditioning Engineers, Inc.. Mr.
Yan has approximately 26 years of experience in industrial management and manufacturing.

Mr. Leung Kwok Yin, aged 54, is one of the co-founders of the Group. Mr. Leung is responsible for product
development, materials sourcing and marketing of the Group. Mr. Leung graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University (formerly known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic) in 1975 with a technician diploma in electrical
engineering. Mr. Leung has been partnering with Mr. Yan for investments in the PRC for approximately 26 years
and has built substantial manufacturing and distribution experiences in the PRC.

Mr. Bao Jisheng, aged 68, has been the general manager of JF A.C.R. Equipment Supplies (Ningbo) Co., Ltd.
(“JF Ningbo”) since January 2003. He joined the Group in January 1999. Mr. Bao was previously the factory
manager of Yuyao General Machinery Factory. Mr. Bao is responsible for the overall operation of JF Ningbo. He
has over 40 years of experience in manufacturing, industrial engineering and business management. Mr. Bao is
a qualified engineer and a director of Yuyao Jiefeng Air-Conditioning Equipment Co., Ltd..

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong, aged 57, graduated from the University of Singapore in 1973 with a degree in Accountancy.
Mr. Kwan is qualified as a Chartered Accountant in Australia in 1979 and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since 1982. He completed the Stanford Executive Program in 1992. He was
previously the president and chief operating officer for the Asia Pacific Region of Merrill Lynch & Co.. Mr. Kwan
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in March 2005.

Mr. Garry Alides Willinge, aged 57, is a fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors and a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is also an Adjunct Professor with the Curtin Business School. He graduated
from the University of Melbourne, Australia in 1970 with a Bachelor of Science. In 1996, he also obtained a
Graduate Diploma in Applied Finance and Investment from the Securities Institute Education in Australia. Mr.
Willinge has worked in a number of management roles in a multinational information technology company. Mr.
Willinge was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in March 2005.

Mr. Yu Hon Wing Allan, aged 50, graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as the
Hong Kong Polytechnic) in 1978 with a higher diploma in Accountancy. Mr. Yu is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (formerly known as the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants). He is also a fellow of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants since 1986. Mr.
Yu was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in March 2005.

Senior Management
Mr. Bao Xiangqian, aged 41, joined the Group in January 1999 and was promoted from the sales director of the
Group to the position of deputy general manager in November 2004 and is in charge of the Group’s marketing
activities and correspondences with overseas customers. Mr. Bao graduated from East China University of Technical
Engineering in 1988 with a bachelor degree major in Scientific English. He has been engaged in international
trading for 16 years. Mr. Bao obtained a Master of Business Administration from the University of Canberra,
Australia in July 2005. Mr. Bao is the son of Mr. Bao Jisheng.

Mr. Wang Shengkang, aged 65, joined the Group in June 2002 and was promoted to the position of deputy
general manager in November 2004. Mr. Wang is responsible for the personnel and daily administrative operations
of the Group. He has been engaged in corporate administration for 20 years.

Mr. Wu Dingfeng, aged 43, has been appointed as the technical controller of the Group since January 2003. Mr.
Wu is responsible for daily technical and mechanical operations of the Group. Mr. Wu graduated from the faculty
of mechanical engineering in (Zhejiang Engineering College, the PRC) in 1983 with a bachelor degree in
engineering. Mr. Wu has been in mechanical engineering industry for over 20 years. Prior to joining the Group in
January 2003, Mr. Wu had worked for Yuyao General Machinery Factory and Yuyao Jiehua Compressor Ltd.,as
technical manager and chief engineer.

Mr. Cheung Wai Tak, aged 54, joined the Group as the financial controller in May 2005 and has been working in
the finance and accounting field for over 10 years. Mr. Cheung is a Certified Public Accountant in the United
States and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He graduated with an MBA
degree from the University of California at Berkeley, the United States in 1981.
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The Directors have pleasure to present their report together with the audited financial statements of JF Household
Furnishings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2006.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability on 19
January 2005 under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands.

Principal Activities
The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sales
of furnishings, home products and accessories primarily used in kitchens and bathrooms. Turnover represents
invoiced value of goods sold, net of value-added tax, and after allowance for goods returned and trade discounts.

An analysis of the turnover from the principal activities during the financial year is set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers
The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable to the major customers and suppliers
respectively during the financial year is as follows:

Percentage of the Group’s
total Sales/Purchases

The largest customer 89.7%
Five largest customers in aggregate 97.8%
The largest supplier 12.7%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 43.6%

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders of the Company (who or which to the knowledge
of the Directors own more than 5.0% of the share capital of the Company) has any beneficial interest in any of the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

Dividends
Pursuant to a resolution passed at a Directors’ meeting on 26 March 2007, a final dividend of HK4.90 cents per
share was recommended to be paid to the shareholders of the Company, subject to shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements. Shares were issued during the year pursuant to the exercise of certain pre-IPO share options during
the year.

Distributable Reserves
At 31 December 2006, the Company’s reserves available for cash distribution amounted to approximately HK$80.0
million. Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. The share premium may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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Directors
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Yan Siu Wai (Chairman)
Mr. Leung Kwok Yin
Mr. Bao Jisheng

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong
Mr. Garry Alides Willinge
Mr. Yu Hon Wing, Allan

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, Mr. Bao Jisheng and Mr. Yu Hon Wing, Allan will retire
by rotation, and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ Service Contracts
On 8 September 2005, all the executive Directors entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial
term of three years commenced from 8 September 2005 and expiring on 7 September 2008 which term is renewable
automatically for successive terms of one year each commencing from the day next after the expiry of the then
current term of their appointment, unless terminated by not less than 6 months’ notice in writing served by either
party at the end of the initial term or at any time thereafter. Each executive Director is committed by the respective
service contracts to devote himself exclusively and diligently to the business and interests of the Group and to
keep the Board promptly and fully informed of his conduct of business affairs, among other commitments. All
executive Directors are also entitled to a bonus depending on the profit of the Group attributable to shareholders
of the Company. The bonus shall be determined by the Board but in any case the aggregate amount payable for
each financial year to all the executive Directors of the Company shall not exceed 10% of such profit.

The Board appointed three independent non-executive Directors on 8 March 2005 for a term of 30 months
commenced from 8 March 2005 and which will be terminable by serving at least 3 months’ prior notice in writing
unless otherwise mutually agreed between the respective independent non-executive Director and the Company.

Directors’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debenture of the
Company or its associated corporations
As at 31 December 2006, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the chief executives of the Company
and each of their respective associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules), in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”) which (a) were required, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of the Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or
(c) were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange were as follows:
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Interests in the shares of the Company

Approximate
percentage
of the total

Personal Family Corporate issued capital of
Name of Director interests interests interests Total the Company

Mr Yan Siu Wai 12,600,000 — 63,000,000 75,600,000 44.6%
(Note 1)

Mr Leung Kwok Yin 15,120,000 — 35,280,000 50,400,000 29.7%
(Note 2)

Notes:

1. Among these 75,600,000 shares, (i) 34,020,000 shares were registered in the name of Excel Strength Investments
Limited (“Excel Strength”); (ii) 28,980,000 shares were registered in the name of Willhero Investments Limited
(“Willhero”); and (iii) the remaining 12,600,000 shares were registered in the name of Mr Yan Siu Wai directly. Each of
Excel Strength and Willhero is a company incorporated in the BVI and whose entire issued capital is solely owned by Mr
Yan Siu Wai. By virtue of the SFO, Mr Yan Siu Wai was deemed to be interested in 63,000,000 shares through his
shareholdings in Excel Strength and Willhero.

2. Among these 50,400,000 shares, (i) 22,680,000 shares were registered in the name of Hero Talent Investments Limited
(“Hero Talent”); (ii) 12,600,000 shares were registered in the name of Joyday Consultants Limited (“Joyday”); and (iii)
the remaining 15,120,000 shares were registered in the name of Mr Leung Kwok Yin directly. Each of Hero Talent and
Joyday is a company incorporated in the BVI and whose entire issued capital is solely owned by Mr Leung Kwok Yin. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr Leung Kwok Yin was deemed to be interested in 35,280,000 shares through his shareholdings in
Hero Talent and Joyday.

Interests in underlying shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2006, three executive Directors have been granted options to subscribe for shares, pursuant
to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme) as defined in the paragraph headed “Share Options” below), details of
which are set out as follows:

Number of
Underlying Exercise price

Name of Director Shares Date of Grant Exercise Period per share
(Note)

Mr. Yan Siu Wai 4,435,200 8 September 2005 13 April 2006 to HK$0.80
12 October 2010

Mr. Leung Kwok Yin 2,956,800 8 September 2005 13 April 2006 to HK$0.80
12 October 2010

Mr. Bao Jisheng 3,360,000 8 September 2005 13 April 2006 to HK$0.80
12 October 2010

Note: The exercise of the options by the Directors was subject to a moratorium period of 12 months from the date of listing
which had expired on 12 October 2006.
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15,120,000 — 35,280,000 50,400,000 29.7%
2

1. 75,600,000 (i)34,020,000 Excel Strength Investments Limited
(ii)28,980,000 Willhero Investments Limited (iii)

12,600,000
63,000,000

2. 50,400,000 (i)22,680,000 Hero Talent Investments Limited
(ii)12,600,000 Joyday Consultants Limited (iii) 15,120,000

35,280,000

4,435,200 0.80

2,956,800 0.80

3,360,000 0.80
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2006, none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company and
each of their respective associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which the Directors were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant
to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the Directors, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders
As at 31 December 2006, other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons who had interests or short positions in the shares or the underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

Share Options
By written resolutions passed on 8 September 2005, the then shareholders of the Company approved and adopted
a share option scheme entitling the board of Directors to grant Share options at its discretion before the listing of
the Shares (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”), and conditionally adopted a post-IPO share option scheme
(the “Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Share options granted on 8 September 2005 pursuant to the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and remained outstanding as at 31 December 2006 are as follows:

Options held Options held
as at as at Exercisable in Exercisable in

1 January 31 December Exercise April October
2006 2006 price 2006 2006

(HK$)

(A) Employees 2,688,000 2,688,000 0.80 2,688,000
6,720,000 5,135,000 0.56 5,135,000

(note)

(B) Directors
Yan Siu Wai 4,435,200 4,435,200 0.80 4,435,200
Leung Kwok Yin 2,956,800 2,956,800 0.80 2,956,800
Bao Jisheng 3,360,000 3,360,000 0.80 3,360,000

20,160,000 18,575,000 7,823,000 10,752,000

Note: 1,445,000 share options were exercised in May 2006 and 140,000 share options were exercised in October 2006 by the
employees.

Share Option Scheme
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2006, no option has been granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Valuation of Share Options
Details of the valuation of share options granted during the year under review are set out in note 24 to the financial
statements.
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571 XV
(a) XV 7 8

(b) 352
(c) 5.46

5.67

336

(A) 2,688,000 2,688,000 0.80 2,688,000
6,720,000 5,135,000 0.56 5,135,000

(B)
4,435,200 4,435,200 0.80 4,435,200
2,956,800 2,956,800 0.80 2,956,800
3,360,000 3,360,000 0.80 3,360,000

20,160,000 18,575,000 7,823,000 10,752,000

1,445,000 140,000

24



28

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Annual Report 2006 2006

JF H
ousehold

 Furnishing
s Lim

ited

Connected Transaction
On 29 August 2006, the Group extended a loan (“Loan”) of HK$1,000,000 to A.C.R Equipment Supplies Limited
(“ACR”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong which issued share capital is held as to 30% by Mr. Yan Siu Wai
(Chairman of the Group and an executive Director), as to 30% by Madam Mak Man Lee, Manly, spouse of Mr. Yan
Siu Wai and as to 40% by Mr. Leung Kwok Yin (an executive Director). The Loan is extended to ACR at an
administrative charge of 6% per annum and had been fully repaid to the Group by three installments. The first
installment of HK$800,000.00 was repaid on 14 September 2006, the second installment of HK$118,500.00 was
repaid on 26 October 2006 and the third installment of HK$81,500.00 was repaid on 6 November 2006.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts
No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or any time during the year
save and except for the transactions disclosed as connected and/or related party transactions in accordance
with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares
Since the listing of the Company’s shares on GEM on 13 October 2005, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares.

Bank Loans
Particulars of bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2006 are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

Retirement Schemes
The Group maintains a mandatory provident fund (“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The Group’s and employee’s contributions to the MPF Scheme are based on 5% of the relevant income of the
relevant employee (up to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000) and in accordance with the requirements
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and related regulations.

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (“Schemes”) organised by the relevant local government authorities in Yuyao, the
PRC whereby the Group is required to make contributions to the Schemes at the rate of 20% of the eligible
employees’ salaries. The local government authorities are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable
to retired employees.

Application of Proceeds from Capital Raising
The Group raised approximately HK$23.3 million from the issue of 42,000,000 new shares of the Company at
HK$0.80 per share in October 2005. The Company’s shares were successfully listed on GEM with effect from 13
October 2005. Up to the date of this report, the Group has applied part of the proceeds totaling approximately
HK$17.62 million for the following purposes:

(i) approximately HK$13.53 million for the expansion of production capacity;

(ii) approximately HK$2.98 million for product diversification;

(iii) approximately HK$0.66 million for strengthening the sales and marketing team; and

(iv) approximately HK$0.45 million for improving overall management system.

Consistent with the disclosure in the Prospectus, the Group intends to apply the remaining proceeds of
approximately HK$5.68 million for the following purposes:

(i) as to approximately HK$4.27 million for the further expansion of production capacity;

(ii) as to approximately HK$0.72 million for the further diversification;

(iii) as to approximately HK$0.24 million for strengthening the sales and marketing team; and

(iv) as to approximately HK$0.45 million for improving overall management system.



Annual Report 2006 2006

29

JF H
ousehold

 Furnishing
s Lim

ited

1,000,000

30% 30% 40%
6% 800,000.00

118,500.00 81,500.00

22

5% 20,000
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(iii) 240,000

(iv) 450,000
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Code of Best Practice
The Group is committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance and business practices. Subject to
the deviations as disclosed in this report, the Group had complied throughout the period from 1 January 2006 to
31 December 2006 with the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board will continue to commit itself to achieving a high quality of
corporate governance.

Directors’ Securities Transactions
The Group has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions as set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have fully complied with the required
standard set out in the GEM Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2006.

Board of Directors
At 31 December 2006, the Board comprises six members, the chairman and two other executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors who are independent as defined in the GEM Listing Rules (the
biographies of the Directors are set out on page 18).

The Board oversees the Group’s strategic development and the overall management of the Group. The Board
also monitors the financial performance and internal controls of the Group. The Board members have a broad
access to business documents and information about the Group. Two Board committees, namely, the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee have been established to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s
affairs. The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating performance of the Group and to approve
future plans and development.

Four Board meetings were held in 2006 and the average attendance rate was over 75%:

Name of Directors Number of meetings attended Attendance rate

Mr. Yan Siu Wai (Chairman) 4/4 100%
Mr. Leung Kwok Yin 4/4 100%
Mr. Bao Jisheng 4/4 100%

Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong 4/4 100%
Mr. Garry Alides Willinge 3/4 75%
Mr. Yu Hon Wing, Allan 4/4 100%

The Chairman and executive Directors also held informal meetings with independent non-executive Directors for
the advices on the well being and the long term development of the Group.

All Directors and Board committees have recourse to external legal counsel and other professionals for independent
advice at the Group’s expense if they require it.

Role of Chairman and General Manager
There is segregation of duties between the Chairman’s responsibility for leadership and management of the
Board and the Company’s strategy, and the General Manager’s responsibility to implement the Company’s strategy.

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the Board in establishing directions for the Group and
monitoring the implementation of corporate strategies and plans for the long term development of the Group and
to create value for shareholders.

The General Manager is responsible for managing the operation of the Group’s businesses, proposing strategies
to the Board, preparing plans and forecast and the implementation of plans and policies adopted by the Board.
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Audit Committee
The Company has established an audit committee with written terms of reference in accordance with Rules 5.28
to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the Company’s annual
report and accounts, half-year reports and quarterly reports and to provide advice and comments thereon to the
Board. The audit committee is also responsible for reviewing internal control procedures of the Group.

The audit committee comprises the three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong
(chairman), Mr. Garry Alides Willinge and Mr. Yu Hon Wing, Allan.

The audit committee members possess diversified industry experience and the Chairman is an expert on financial
and auditing matters. The audit committee meets four times each year. During 2006, the audit committee considered
the external auditors’ projected audit fees, discussed with the external auditors their independence and the
nature and scope of the audit; reviewed the interim and annual financial statements and reviewed the external
auditors’ management letter and management’s response. As a result, they recommended the Board to adopt the
quarterly and annual reports for 2006.

Remuneration Committee
The remuneration committee was set up to review the remuneration policies and approved the salary and bonus
of the executive Directors and certain key executives, to review the remuneration policy of the Group and to
approve the granting of options. One meeting was held in 2006. All committee members are independent non-
executive Directors. No executive Director takes part in any discussion about his own remuneration.

Directors’ emoluments and retirement benefits are disclosed in note 8 to the financial statement. Details of the
granting of options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are disclosed
on pages 24 to 27.

Auditor’s Remuneration
During the year ended 31 December 2006, the remuneration paid and payable to the auditors of the Company,
RSM Nelson Wheeler, for the provision of the Group’s audit services and taxation services were HK$470,000 and
HK$5,000 respectively.

Related Party Transactions
The related party transactions are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

By order of the board
Yan Siu Wai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2007
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
JF HOUSEHOLD FURNISHINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of JF Household Furnishings Limited (the “Company”) set
out on pages 36 to 84, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2006, and the
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as
at 31 December 2006 and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

26 March 2007
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Note 2006 2005

HK$ HK$

REVENUE 6 193,902,367 199,625,181

Cost of sales (158,504,600) (158,922,912)

Gross profit 35,397,767 40,702,269

Other income 6 4,149,471 868,953
Distribution costs (2,448,438) (1,512,091)
Administrative expenses (11,493,403) (10,826,406)

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 7 25,605,397 29,232,725

Finance costs 9 (1,079,321) (1,247,915)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 24,526,076 27,984,810

Income tax expense 10(a) (3,863,193) (4,325,579)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY 20,662,883 23,659,231

DIVIDEND 11 8,309,665 9,488,920

EARNINGS PER SHARE 12

Basic 0.12 0.17

Diluted 0.12 0.17
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Note 2006 2005

HK$ HK$

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 13 29,451,777 13,994,401
Land use rights 14 1,056,784 1,054,752
Deposit paid for acquisition of

land use rights 15 16,015,287 15,553,308

46,523,848 30,602,461

Current assets

Inventories 16 42,326,566 32,944,923
Trade receivables 17 26,527,951 31,205,524
Deposits, other receivables

and prepayments 5,941,961 6,891,514
Due from a related company 18, 30 19,241 139,920
Pledged bank deposits 2,235,712 1,170,000
Bank and cash balances 19 9,397,280 13,636,669

86,448,711 85,988,550

Current liabilities

Trade payables 20 11,451,980 14,854,039
Other payables and accruals 4,196,345 6,070,846
Dividends payable — 871,876
Due to directors 21 540,000 571,720
Current tax liabilities 1,735,248 3,202,744
Bank borrowings 22 25,524,722 15,865,385

43,448,295 41,436,610

NET CURRENT ASSETS 43,000,416 44,551,940

NET ASSETS 89,524,264 75,154,401

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 23 1,695,850 1,680,000
Reserves 87,828,414 73,474,401

TOTAL EQUITY 89,524,264 75,154,401

Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2007

Yan Siu Wai Leung Kwok Yin

Director Director
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Reserve

Foreign Employee
currency share-based Proposed

Share Share Merger translation Capital General compensation Retained final
Note capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total

(note 26 (a)) (note a) (note b) (note c) (note 26(c))
 26(a)  a  b  c  26(c)

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

At 1 January 2005 — — 7,358,082 — 131,901 5,338,455 — 12,475,416 — 25,303,854

Exchange difference on
translation of financial
statements of
subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong — — — 567,597 — — — — — 567,597

Share issue expenses — (10,326,471) — — — — — — — (10,326,471)

Net expense recognised
directly in equity — (10,326,471) — 567,597 — — — — — (9,758,874)

Profit for the year — — — — — — — 23,659,231 — 23,659,231

Total recognised income
and expense for
the year — (10,326,471) — 567,597 — — — 23,659,231 — 13,900,357

New shares issued on
reorganisation 23(ii)&(iv) 20,000 (20,000) — — — — — — — —

Capitalisation of share
premium 23(v) 1,240,000 (1,240,000) — — — — — — — —

Shares issued on
placing 23(vi) 420,000 33,180,000 — — — — — — — 33,600,000

Recognition of
share-based payment 24(i) — — — — — — 2,350,190 — — 2,350,190

Transfers — — — — — 2,799,847 — (2,799,847) — —
2005 proposed final

dividend 11 — — — — — — — (9,488,920) 9,488,920 —

At 31 December 2005
1,680,000 21,593,529 7,358,082 567,597 131,901 8,138,302 2,350,190 23,845,880 9,488,920 75,154,401
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Reserve

Foreign Employee
currency share-based Proposed

Share Share Merger translation Capital General compensation Retained final
Note capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total

(note 26 (a)) (note a) (note b) (note c) (note 26(c))
 26(a)  a  b  c  26(c)

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

At 1 January 2006 1,680,000 21,593,529 7,358,082 567,597 131,901 8,138,302 2,350,190 23,845,880 9,488,920 75,154,401

Exchange difference on
translation of financial
statements of
subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong — — — 1,897,017 — — — — — 1,897,017

Net income recognised
directly in equity — — — 1,897,017 — — — — — 1,897,017

Profit for the year — — — — — — — 20,662,883 — 20,662,883

Total recognised income
and expense for
the year — — — 1,897,017 — — — 20,662,883 — 22,559,900

Share issue on exercise
of share options 23(vii) 15,850 1,249,539 — — — — (377,789) — — 887,600

Recognition of
share-based payment 24(i) — — — — — — 411,283 — — 411,283

Dividend paid — — — — — — — — (9,488,920) (9,488,920)
Transfers — — — — 814,931 2,162,027 — (2,976,958) — —
2006 proposed final

dividend 11 — — — — — — — (8,309,665) 8,309,665 —

At 31 December 2006
1,695,850 22,843,068 7,358,082 2,464,614 946,832 10,300,329 2,383,684 33,222,140 8,309,665 89,524,264

Note:

a. The merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the share capital issued by the Company in exchange for
the nominal value of the share capital and share premium of its
subsidiaries arising from group reorganisation on 8 September
2005 (“Corporate Reorganisation”).

b. This represents the transfer from retained profits to capital reserve
as a result of the write off of certain trade payables by 

 (JF A.C.R. Equipment Supplies (Ningbo) Co., Ltd.)
(“JF Ningbo”), a subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) accounting principles and
financial regulations, any gains arising from debt restructuring
which represent the difference between the final settlement and
the carrying value of the debt concerned are directly reflected in
capital reserve and therefore not distributable. Accordingly, a
transfer has been made from retained profits to capital reserve.
The capital reserve can only be used to increase capital of this
subsidiary.

c. The general reserve is set up by JF Ningbo by way of appropriation
from the profit after tax in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC. The rate of appropriation to the general
reserve is subject to the decision of the board of directors of JF
Ningbo, but the minimum appropriation rate is 10% of the profit
after tax for each year, until when the accumulated balance
reaches 50% of its registered capital. Pursuant to the relevant
laws and regulations of the PRC, if approvals are obtained from
the relevant government authorities, the general reserve can be
used in setting off accumulated losses or to increase the capital
of this subsidiary.

a.

b.

c.

10
50
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2006 2005

HK$ HK$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 24,526,076 27,984,810
Adjustments for:

Depreciation 1,021,559 838,238
Amortisation of land use rights 29,298 28,452
Loss on disposals of property, plant and

equipment — 23,023
Write off of property, plant and equipment

2,513 —
Finance costs 1,079,321 1,247,915
Interest income (216,374) (61,403)
Employee share option benefits 411,283 2,350,190

Operating profit before
working capital changes 26,853,676 32,411,225
Increase in inventories (9,381,643) (4,882,866)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables

4,677,573 (12,308,497)
Decrease in deposits, other receivables and

prepayments
949,553 4,526,061

(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables
(3,402,059) 2,292,964

Decrease in deposit received — (1,803,208)
Decrease in amounts due to related

companies — (849,349)
Decrease in bills payable — (1,150,970)
Decrease in other payables and accruals

(1,874,501) (5,528,310)
Decrease in amounts due to directors (31,720) —

Cash generated from operations 17,790,879 12,707,050
Income tax paid (5,330,689) (2,739,076)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 12,460,190 9,967,974
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2006 2005

HK$ HK$

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
(16,065,772) (5,131,359)

Increase in deposit paid for acquisition of
land use rights — (15,553,308)

(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank
deposits (1,065,712) 1,953,264

Sale proceeds from disposals of property,
plant and equipment — 48,077

Decrease/(Increase) in amounts due from
related companies 120,679 (137,070)

Decrease in amounts due to related
companies — (601,469)

Decrease in amounts due from directors — 1,560
Increase in amounts due to directors — 79,746
Interest received 216,374 61,403

NET CASH USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (16,794,431) (19,279,156)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from placing of shares — 33,600,000
Share issue expenses — (10,326,471)
Proceeds from issue of shares 887,600 —
Inception of new bank loans

48,420,208 22,596,154
Repayment of bank loans (38,760,871) (29,653,127)
Dividend paid (10,360,796) (5,023,302)
Interest paid (1,079,321) (1,247,915)

NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (893,180) 9,945,339

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(5,227,421) 634,157

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES 988,032 362,776

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 13,636,669 12,639,736

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 9,397,280 13,636,669

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

Bank and cash balances 9,397,280 13,636,669
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1. General Information
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
address of its principal place of business is 15th floor, EIB
Tower, 4-6 Morrison Hill Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
Company’s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 27
to the financial statements.

2. Adoption of New and Revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) that are relevant to its
operations and effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2006. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. The
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result
in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies
and amounts reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The application of these
new HKFRSs will not have material impact on the financial
statements of the Group.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgements in the process of applying the accounting
policies. The areas involving critical judgements and areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to these
financial statements, are disclosed in note 4 to the financial
statements.

1.

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands

4-6
15

27

2.

HKICPA

HKFRSs

HKFRS HKAS

3.

4
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
The signif icant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. Control
is the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group
has control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary
represents the difference between the proceeds of
the sale and the Group’s share of its net assets
together with any goodwill relating to the subsidiary
which was not previously charged or recognised in
the consolidated income statement and also any
related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve.

Inter-company t ransact ions,  balances and
unrealised profits on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

(b) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

3.

(a)

(b)
(i)
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(b) Foreign currency translation (cont’d)

(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevai l ing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated
at the rates ruling on the balance sheet date.
Prof i ts and losses resul t ing from this
translation policy are included in the income
statement.

(iii) Translation on consolidation
The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional currency
different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

— Income and expenses for  each
income statement are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this
a v e r a g e  i s  n o t  a  re a s o n a b l e
approximation of the cumulative effect
o f  the  ra tes  preva i l i ng  on  the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
a t  the  exchange  ra tes  on  the
transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translat ion of the net
investment in fore ign ent i t ies and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the profit or loss on
disposal.

3.

(b)
(ii)

(iii)

—

—

—
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(c) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are expensed in the income statement during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal useful
lives are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
at each balance sheet date.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant
assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in the income statement.

(d) Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Lease payments (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are
expensed in the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

3.

(c)

20 
10

5
5

(d)
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(e) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average basis. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour and an appropriate propor t ion of al l
production overhead expenditure, and where
appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

(f) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment. An allowance for
impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of receivables. The
amount of the allowance is the difference between
the receivables’ carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition. The amount of the allowance is
recognised in the income statement.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods and recognised in the income statement
when an increase in the receivables’ recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of
the receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

(g) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value. Bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents.

3.

(e)

(f)

(g)
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(h) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is
any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out below.

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the balance sheet date.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

(i) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is
recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sales of manufactured goods is
recognised on the transfer of significant risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered and the
title has passed to the customers.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

3.

(h)

(i)
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(j) Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and
long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as
a percentage of employees’ basic salaries.
The retirement benefit scheme cost charged
to  the  income s ta tement  represents
contributions payable by the Group to the
funds.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or to
provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan
which is without realistic possibil i ty of
withdrawal.

(k) Share-based payments
The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain employees. Equity-settled
share-based payments are measured at fair value
(excluding the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of
the equity-sett led share-based payments is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that
will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of
non market-based vesting conditions.

3.

(j)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(k)
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(l) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs direct ly attr ibutable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of  borrowing costs el ig ible for
capital isat ion is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of
the Group that are outstanding during the period,
other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
income statement in the period in which they are
incurred.

(m) Government grants
A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to it and that the grant
will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in the income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs they
are intended to compensate.

(n) Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the income statement because it
excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

3.

(l)

(m)

(n)
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(n) Taxation (cont’d)
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilit ies are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
uti l ised. Such assets and l iabi l i t ies are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged
or credited to the income statement, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt
with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

3.

(n)
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(o) Related parties
A party is related to the Group if:

(i) directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediar ies,  the par ty controls,  is
controlled by, or is under common control
with, the Group; has an interest in the Group
that gives it significant influence over the
Group; or has joint control over the Group;

(ii) the party is an associate;

(iii) the party is a joint venture;

(iv) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or its parent;

(v) the party is a close member of the family of
any individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of the Group, or
of any entity that is a related party of the
Group.

(p) Segment reporting
A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products
and services (business segment), or in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
repor t ing,  the Group has determined that
geographical be presented as the primary reporting
format and business segments as the secondary
reporting format.

3.

(o)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v) (i) (iv)

(vi)
(iv) (v)

(vii)

(p)
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(p) Segment reporting (cont’d)
Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis to the segment. Unallocated costs mainly
represent corporate expenses. Segment assets
consist primarily of property, plant and equipment,
inventories and trade receivables. Segment liabilities
comprise operating liabilities and exclude items
such as tax liabilities and corporate borrowings.

Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities
are determined before intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of
the consolidation process, except to the extent that
such intra-group balances and transactions are
between Group enterprises within a single segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost
incurred during the period to acquire segment
assets (both tangible and intangible) that are
expected to be used for more than one period.

(q) Impairment of assets
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets other than inventories and receivables to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount.  An impairment loss is  recognised
immediately in the income statement, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease.

3.

(p)

(q)
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(q) Impairment of assets (cont’d)
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset or cash-generating
unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in the income statement,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

(r) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilit ies unless the
probability of outflow is remote.

(s) Events after the balance sheet date
Events after the balance sheet date that provide
additional information about the Group’s position at
the balance sheet date or those that indicate the
going concern assumption is not appropriate are
adjusting events and are reflected in the financial
statements. Events after the balance sheet date that
are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when material.

3.

(q)

(r)

(s)
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4. Critical Judgements and Key Estimates

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. Management will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives are
different to those previously estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(b) Allowances for bad and doubtful debts
The policy for allowance of bad and doubtful debts
of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of accounts and
on management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer. If the financial conditions
of customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, addition allowances may be required.

5. Financial Risk Management
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk
The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, United States dollars and Renminbi. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency debt.
The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

4.

(a)

(b)

5.

(a)
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5. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Credit risk
The Group’s principal financial assets are trade and
other receivables and bank and cash balances,
which represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade receivables. The amounts presented in the
balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful
receivables, if any, estimated by the Group’s
management based on prior experience and their
assessment of the current economic environment.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
majority of the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group has significant concentration of credit
risk to its trade receivables as the Group’s largest
customer contributed over 90% of the turnover and
shared over 82% of the trade receivables in the year.
The Group has policies and procedures to monitor
the collection of the trade receivables to limit the
exposure to non-recoverable of the receivables.

(c) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

(d) Interest rate risk
As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets, the Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

(e) Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and f inancial  l iabi l i t ies as ref lected in the
consolidated balance sheet approximate their
respective fair values.

5.

(b)

90%
82%

(c)

(d)

(e)
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6. Revenue, Other Income and Segment Information
The Group’s turnover represented the net invoiced value
of goods sold to customers, after allowances for trade
discounts and returns.

2006 2005

HK$ HK$

Revenue
Sales of goods 193,902,367 199,625,181

Other income
Interest income 216,374 61,403
Government grants 2,410,901 729,805
Write off of trade payables 1,107,244 —
Others 414,952 77,745

4,149,471 868,953

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats:

(i) on a pr imary segment repor t ing basis,  by
geographical segments; and

(ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by
business segments.

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and
sale of furnishings and home products.

6.

(i)

(ii)
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6. Revenue, Other Income and Segment Information
(cont’d)

(a) Geographical segments based on the location
of customers
In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues, results, assets and liabilities are attributed
to the segments based on the location of the
customers.

The following tables present revenue, results, assets,
liabilities and capital expenditure information for the
Group’s geographical segments.

PRC Hong Kong Consolidated

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

Segment revenue:

Sales to external
customers 40,305,064 29,543,207 153,597,303 170,081,974 193,902,367 199,625,181

Segment results 2,899,298 3,182,417 24,863,946 32,263,892 27,763,244 35,446,309

Other income 4,149,471 868,953
Unallocated expenses (6,307,318 ) (7,082,537 )

Profit from operations 25,605,397 29,232,725
Finance costs (1,079,321 ) (1,247,915 )

Profit before tax 24,526,076 27,984,810
Income tax expense (3,863,193 ) (4,325,579 )

Profit for the year 20,662,883 23,659,231

Segment assets 8,146,282 9,673,860 18,389,166 21,605,295 26,535,448 31,279,155

Unallocated assets 106,437,111 85,311,856

Total assets 132,972,559 116,591,011

Segment liabilities 1,065,033 — — — 1,065,033 —

Unallocated liabilities 42,383,262 41,436,610

Total liabilities 43,448,295 41,436,610

Other segment information:

Unallocated depreciation 1,021,559 838,238

Unallocated capital
expenditure 16,065,772 5,131,359

6.

(a)
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6. Revenue, Other Income and Segment Information
(cont’d)

(b) Geographic segments based on the location
of assets
All of the Group’s assets are substantially located in
the PRC. No additional information in respect of
segment assets and capital expenditure information
are presented.

(c) Business segments
No business segment information is presented as
all the Group’s turnover and contribution to operating
results were arose from manufacturing and sale of
furnishings and home products during the year.

7. Profit from Operations
The Group’s profit from operations is stated after charging
the following:

2006 2005

HK$ HK$

Auditors’ remuneration 498,624 415,615
Cost of inventories sold 158,504,600 158,922,912
Depreciation 1,021,559 838,238
Loss on disposals of property,

plant and equipment — 23,023
Staff costs (including directors’

emoluments (note 8)) 8
Fees 260,000 211,771
Basic salaries, bonuses,

allowances and benefits in kind 14,428,606 13,297,920
Retirement benefits scheme

contributions 1,507,810 1,613,509
Employee share option

benefits (equity settled) 411,283 2,350,190
Operating lease — land and buildings   125,251 71,952
Net exchange losses 2,223,854 617,374
Write off of property,

plant and equipment 2,513 —

6.

(b)

(c)

7.
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7. Profit from Operations (cont’d)
Cost of inventories sold included staff costs and
depreciation of approximately HK$12,268,043 (2005:
HK$11,803,874) which are included in the amounts
disclosed separately above.

Note:

According to the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) legislation
regulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority in
Hong Kong, with effect from 1 December 2000 the Group is
required to participate in MPF Scheme operated by approved
trustees in Hong Kong and to make contributions for its eligible
employees. The contributions borne by the Group are calculated
at 5% of the salaries and wages (monthly contribution is limited to
5% of HK$20,000 for each eligible employee) as calculated under
the MPF legislation.

Employees of the Group in the PRC participate in a retirement
benefit plan ( ) under which the Group is obliged to
make monthly defined contributions to the plan at 20% of the
employee’s basic salary during the year.

7.

1 2 , 2 6 8 , 0 4 3
11,803,874

5%
20,000 5%

20%
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8. Directors’ Emoluments and Five Highest Paid
Individuals
Details of emoluments of the directors of the Company
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange and Section
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2006

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits

and benefits Discretionary Share-based scheme Total
Name of director Fees in kind bonus payment contributions emoluments

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

Executive directors

Mr. Yan Siu Wai — 408,000 142,000 57,000 12,000 619,000
Mr. Leung Kwok Yin — 216,000 134,000 38,000 11,150 399,150
Mr. Bao Jisheng — 715,986 454,000 43,182 — 1,213,168

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong 100,000 — — — — 100,000
Mr. Garry Alides, Willinge Garry Alides,

Willinge 100,000 — — — — 100,000
Mr. Yu Hon Wing, Allan 60,000 — — — — 60,000

Total 260,000 1,339,986 730,000 138,182 23,150 2,491,318

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits

and benefits Discretionary Share-based scheme Total
Name of director Fees in kind bonus payment contributions emoluments

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

Executive directors

Mr. Yan Siu Wai — 505,428 44,572 325,716 7,000 882,716
Mr. Leung Kwok Yin — 307,939 42,061 217,144 5,810 572,954
Mr. Bao Jisheng — 825,892 348,339 246,755 — 1,420,986

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong 81,450 — — — — 81,450
Mr. Garry Alides, Willinge Garry Alides,

Willinge 81,450 — — — — 81,450
Mr. Yu Hon Wing, Allan 48,871 — — — — 48,871

Total 211,771 1,639,259 434,972 789,615 12,810 3,088,427

8.

161

For the year ended 31 December 2005
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8. Directors’ Emoluments and Five Highest Paid
Individuals (cont’d)
During the year ended 31 December 2005, 10,752,000
options were granted to the executive directors, under the
share option scheme as stated in note 24 to the financial
statements.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (2005:
HK$Nil).

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2006 included three (2005: three)
directors, details of whose emoluments are disclosed
above. Details of the emoluments of the remaining two
(2005: two) highest paid individuals for the year ended 31
December 2006, which fel l  within the “HK$Nil  to
HK$1,000,000” band, are as follows:

2006 2005

HK$ HK$

Basic salaries, allowances
and benefits in kind 648,515 644,231

Discretionary bonus 200,000 200,000
Share-based payment 118,324 676,136
Retirement benefits

scheme contributions 22,373 13,734

989,212 1,534,101

During the year, no emoluments were paid or payable by
the Group to any of the directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2005: HK$Nil).

8.

24

10,752,000

1,000,000
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9. Finance Costs

2006 2005

HK$ HK$

Interest on bank loans 1,220,745 1,247,915
Amount capitalised (141,424) —

1,079,321 1,247,915

Borrowing costs on funds borrowed generally are
capitalised at a rate 6.12% per annum (2005: Nil).

10. Income Tax Expense
(a) Taxation included in the consolidated income

statement represents:

2006 2005

HK$ HK$

Current tax — PRC   
enterprise income tax 3,879,904 4,325,579

Over-provision in prior year (16,711) —

3,863,193 4,325,579

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax in Hong Kong
is required since the Group has no assessable profit
for the year (2005: HK$Nil).

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, JF Ningbo operating in Zhejiang Province, the
PRC, is subject to enterprise income tax rate at
26.4% on its taxable profit in accordance with
Income Tax Law of People’s Republic of China for
Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Foreign
Enterprises.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, JF Ningbo is entitled to a 50% reduction for
the enterprise income tax as over 70% of the goods
sold were exported goods.

9.

6.12

10.
(a)

26.4%

70%
50%
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10. Income Tax Expense (cont’d)
(a) Taxation included in the consolidated income

statement represents: (cont’d)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC,  (Ningbo JF Metal
Products Co. Ltd.) (“JF Metal”) and 

 (Ningbo JF Furniture Co., Ltd.) (“JF
Furniture”), two subsidiaries of the Company
operating in Zhejiang Province, the PRC, are subject
to enterprise income tax rate at 26.4% on its taxable
profit in accordance with Income Tax Law of People’s
Republic of China for Enterprises with Foreign
Investment and Foreign Enterprises. JF Metal and
JF Furniture are entitled to a two-year exemption
from enterprise income tax starting from its first
profit-making year followed by a 50% reduction for
the subsequent three years. No provision for PRC
enterprise income tax has been made as JF Metal
and JF Furniture incurred tax loss for the year.

(b) No provision for deferred taxation has been made
in the financial statements as the effect of temporary
differences is immaterial to the Group.

(c) The reconciliation between the income tax expense
and the product of profit before tax multipled by the
PRC enterprise income tax rate is as follows:

2006 2005

HK$ HK$

Profit before tax 24,526,076 27,984,810

Tax at PRC enterprise income 33%
tax rate of 33% (2005: 33%) 33% 8,093,605 9,234,987

Effect of preferential tax rate (4,856,163) (5,540,992)
Tax effect of income

that is not taxable (106,750) (96,334)
Tax effect of expenses that

are not deductible 707,866 945,832
Tax effect of temporary

differences not recognised — (225,058)
Tax effect of tax losses

not recognised 41,346 7,144
Over-provision in prior year (16,711) —

Income tax expense 3,863,193 4,325,579

10.
(a)

26.4%

50%

(b)

(c)
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11. Dividend
2006 2005

HK$ HK$

Proposed final dividend
— HK4.9 cents (2005: HK5.6 cents) 4.9
per ordinary share 5.6 8,309,665 9,488,920

The previously reported proposed final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2005 was HK$9,408,000. The
additional amount of HK$80,920 paid was as a result of
the exercise of 1,445,000 share options prior to the transfer
books and register of members of the Company being
closed for payment of final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2005.

12. Earnings per Share
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
are based on the following:

2006 2005

HK$ HK$

Earnings
Profit attributable to equity holders

of the Company, used in the basic and
diluted earnings per share calculation 20,662,883 23,659,231

Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary

shares used in basic earnings per
share calculation 168,922,054 135,320,548

Effect of share option 1,635,318 635,178

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in diluted earnings per
share calculation 170,557,372 135,955,726

The basis of calculation of the earnings per share for 2005
have been changed to conform to the current year’s basis
of calculation.

11.

9,408,000

1,445,000
80,920

12.
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment

Furniture,
Plant and fixtures and Motor Construction

Buildings machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

Cost

At 1 January 2005 7,032,037 2,521,278 212,739 862,792 — 10,628,846
Additions — 1,674,048 116,614 — 3,340,697 5,131,359
Disposals — — — (90,000 ) — (90,000 )
Exchange difference 135,231 48,486 4,091 16,592 — 204,400

At 31 December 2005 and
1 January 2006

7,167,268 4,243,812 333,444 789,384 3,340,697 15,874,605
Additions — 3,290,997 360,171 95,010 12,319,594 16,065,772
Write off — (3,802 ) — — — (3,802 )
Transfer 3,784,388 — — — (3,784,388 ) —
Exchange difference 212,889 126,054 9,904 23,448 99,229 471,524

At 31 December 2006
11,164,545 7,657,061 703,519 907,842 11,975,132 32,408,099

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2005 593,660 222,578 40,731 183,881 — 1,040,850
Charge for the year 322,787 308,524 59,438 147,489 — 838,238
Disposals — — — (18,900 ) — (18,900 )
Exchange difference 11,417 4,280 783 3,536 — 20,016

At 31 December 2005 and
1 January 2006

927,864 535,382 100,952 316,006 — 1,880,204
Charge for the year 270,138 523,305 75,306 152,810 — 1,021,559
Write off — (1,289 ) — — — (1,289 )
Exchange difference 27,560 15,902 2,999 9,387 — 55,848

At 31 December 2006
1,225,562 1,073,300 179,257 478,203 — 2,956,322

Carrying amount

At 31 December 2006
9,938,983 6,583,761 524,262 429,639 11,975,132 29,451,777

At 31 December 2005
6,239,404 3,708,430 232,492 473,378 3,340,697 13,944,401

13.

The Group’s buildings are situated in the PRC.

At 31 December 2006, the Group’s buildings with carrying
v a l u e  o f  a p p ro x i m a t e l y  H K $ 7 , 6 7 8 , 0 0 0  ( 2 0 0 5 :
HK$5,516,000) were pledged as security to a bank for the
Group’s banking facilities (note 22).

7,678,000
5,516,000

22
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14. Land Use Rights

HK$

Cost

At 1 January 2005 1,395,780
Exchange difference 26,842

At 31 December 2005 and 1 January 2006
1,422,622

Exchange difference 42,256

At 31 December 2006 1,464,878

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 January 2005 333,013
Charge for the year 28,452
Exchange difference 6,405

At 31 December 2005 and 1 January 2006
367,870

Charge for the year 29,298
Exchange difference 10,926

At 31 December 2006 408,094

Carrying amount

At 31 December 2006 1,056,784

At 31 December 2005 1,054,752

The Group’s land use rights are situated in the PRC under
medium term leases expiring in 2043 and pledged as
security to a bank for the Group’s banking facilities (note
22).

14.

22
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15. Deposit Paid for Acquisition of Land Use Rights
HK$

At 1 January 2005 —
Addition 15,553,308

At 31 December 2005 and 1 January 2006
15,553,308

Exchange difference 461,979

At 31 December 2006 16,015,287

The consideration for acquisition of the land use rights of
a parcel of land located in the PRC for a term of 50 years
commencing from the date of issue of the State-owned
Land Use Rights Certificate. The Group is in the process
of obtaining the relevant State-owned Land Use Rights
Certificate.

16. Inventories

15.

50

16.
2006 2005

HK$ HK$

Raw materials 29,468,069 19,532,738
Work in progress 11,029,307 12,326,220
Finished goods 1,829,190 1,085,965

42,326,566 32,944,923

17. Trade Receivables
2006 2005

HK$ HK$

Trade receivables 22,264,462 23,913,826
Trade receivables from a

related company 4,263,489 7,291,698

26,527,951 31,205,524

Particulars of the trade receivables from a related company
are as follows:

2006 2005

HK$ HK$

(Zhejiang Shuaikang Electric Stock 
Co. Ltd.) (“Zhejiang Shuaikang”) 30
(note 30) 4,263,489 7,291,698

Maximum balance 7,757,179 8,183,628

17.
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17. Trade Receivables (cont’d)
The Group normally granted customers with credit terms
of 30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables is as follows:

2006 2005

HK$ HK$

0 - 30 days 0 30 23,594,740 18,507,628
31 - 60 days 31 60 1,521,422 10,946,081
61 - 90 days 61 90 1,376,771 1,751,815
Over 90 days 90 35,018 —

26,527,951 31,205,524

18. Due from a Related Company
The amount due from a related company represents
expenses paid on behalf of 
(Yuyao Jiefeng Air Conditioning Equipment Co. Ltd.)
(“Yuyao Jiefeng”) by the Group. The balances outstanding
at 31 December 2005 and 31 December 2006 respectively
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment (note 30).

19. Bank and Cash Balances
At 31 December 2006, bank and cash balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
approximately HK$7,200,000 (2005: HK$12,517,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

20. Trade Payables

2006 2005

HK$ HK$

Trade payables 11,161,220 14,843,784
Trade payables to related companies 290,760 10,255

11,451,980 14,854,039

17.
30 90

18.

30

19.

7,200,000
12,517,000

20.
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20. Trade Payables (cont’d)
Particulars of the trade payables to related companies are
as follows:

2006 2005

HK$ HK$

Yuyao Jiefeng (note 30) 30 263,533 —

(Yuyao Kongshun Modern 30
Printing Service Co. Ltd.) (note 30) 27,227 10,255

290,760 10,255

The credit terms of trade payables varies according to
terms of different suppliers which generally ranging from
letter of credit at sight to 90 days. The ageing analysis of
trade payables is as follows:

2006 2005

HK$ HK$

0 - 30 days 0 30 7,784,539 5,759,646
31 - 60 days 31 60 2,315,599 2,562,711
61 - 90 days 61 90 579,442 2,141,831
Over 90 days 90 772,400 4,389,851

11,451,980 14,854,039

21. Due to Directors
2006 2005

HK$ HK$

Mr. Yan Siu Wai 320,000 343,032
Mr. Leung Kwok Yin 220,000 228,688

540,000 571,720

The amounts due to directors represent the temporary cash
advance from the directors. The amounts are interest-free,
unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

20.

90

21.
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22. Bank Borrowings
2006 2005

HK$ HK$

Bank loans are repayable on
demand or within one year

— secured — 7,702,940 2,403,846
— unsecured — 17,821,782 13,461,539

Amounts due for settlement 12
within 12 months 25,524,722 15,865,385

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

2006 2005

HK$ HK$

RMB 23,267,327 15,865,385
US$ 2,257,395 —

25,524,722 15,865,385

The effective interest rates per annum at the balance sheet
date are as follows:

2006 2005

Bank loans 6.096% - 8.10% 5.742% - 6.138%

Bank loans of HK$24,710,587 (2005: HK$15,865,385) are
arranged at fixed interest rates and expose the Group to
fair value interest rates risk. Other borrowings are arranged
at floating rates, thus exposing the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2006, the Group has been granted bank
facilities totalling approximately HK$25 million (2005:
HK$16 million) which were secured by the following:

(a) legal charge on land use rights and certain buildings
owned by the Group;

(b) corporate guarantees given by the Company and a
subsidiary; and

(c) all monies charge over deposits executed by
subsidiaries of the Company in favour of the two
banks of HK$1,000,000 (2005: HK$Nil) and in an
amount of not less than US$150,000 (2005:
US$150,000).

22.

24,710,587
15,865,385

25,000,000
16,000,000

(a)

(b)

(c)
1,000,000

150,000
150,000
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23. Share Capital

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
Number of
0.01

Note shares Par value

HK$

Authorised:
Upon incorporation on

19 January 2005 (i) 20,000,000 200,000
Increase in authorised

share capital (iii) 480,000,000 4,800,000

At 31 December 2005,
1 January 2006 and
31 December 2006 500,000,000 5,000,000

Issued and fully paid:
Allotted and issued nil-paid

on 23 February 2005 (ii) 1,000,000 —
Arising from Corporate

Reorganisation (iv) 1,000,000 10,000
Shares credit as fully paid (iv) — 10,000
Issue of shares by

capitalisation of share
premium account (v) 124,000,000 1,240,000

New issue on placing (vi) 42,000,000 420,000

At 31 December 2005
and 1 January 2006 168,000,000 1,680,000

Shares issued on exercise
of share options (vii) 1,585,000 15,850

At 31 December 2006 169,585,000 1,695,850

23.
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23. Share Capital (cont’d)
Note:

(i) The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 19 January 2005 with an authorised share capital of
HK$200,000 divided into 20,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each.

(ii) On 23 February 2005, one share of HK$0.01 was allotted
and issued nil-paid. On the same date, 999,999 shares of
HK$0.01 was allotted and issued nil-paid.

(iii) On 8 September 2005, wr i t ten resolut ions of  a l l
shareholders of the Company were passed pursuant to
which the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$200,000 to HK$5,000,000 by the
creation of an additional 480,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each.

(iv) Pursuant to the Corporate Reorganisation (a) 1,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each allotted and issued,
credited as fully paid and (b) 1,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each issued nil-paid, as mentioned in note (ii)
above were credited as fully paid, in consideration for
transfer the entire issued shares in JF Household
Furnishings (Asia) Ltd. (“JF Asia”) to the Company.

(v) Pursuant to a resolution of all shareholders of the Company
passed on 8 September 2005, 124,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company were allotted and issued, credited
as fully paid at par value of HK$0.01 each to the holders
of the share of the Company whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company at the close of
business on 8 September 2005 in proportion as nearly as
possible without involving fractions to their then existing
shareholdings in the Company. Such allotment and
capitalisation were conditional on the share premium
account of the Company being credited as a result of
conditional placing of new shares as mentioned in the
prospectus of the Company dated 5 October 2005.

(vi) On 12 October 2005, 42,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company were issued on placing at a premium of HK$0.79
for cash totalling HK$33,600,000. The excess of the issued
price over the par value of the shares, net of share issue
expenses, was credited to the share premium account of
the Company.

(vii) During the year, 1,585,000 (2005: Nil) ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued in relation to share options
exercised by staff and senior management under the pre-
IPO share option scheme of the Company at HK$0.56 for
a total cash consideration of approximately HK$887,600.
The excess of the subscription consideration received over
the nominal values issued, amounted to approximately
HK$871,750, was credited to the share premium account.

23.

(i)

200,000 20,000,000
0.01

(ii)
0.01

999,999 0.01

(iii)

480,000,000
0.01

200,000 5,000,000

(iv) (a)
1,000,000 0.01

(b)1,000,000
0.01

(i i )

(v)

124,000,000 0.01

(vi)
0 . 7 9

42,000,000
33,600,000

(vii)

0.56
1,585,000

0.01
887,600

871,750
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24. Share-based Payment

Equity-settled share option scheme
(i) Pre-IPO share option scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 8 September 2005,
the pre-IPO share option scheme (“Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) was approved.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is to recognise the contribution of certain persons
to the growth of the Group and/or to the listing of
shares of the Company on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. The total number of the shares of the
Company subject to the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is 20,160,000 representing 12% of the
issued share capital  of  the Company upon
completion of the placing of the shares of the
Company and capitalisation issue and no further
options will be granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme. Upon acceptance of the option,
each grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company by
way of consideration for the grant. All of these
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme will only be exercised after the expiry of
six months from 13 October 2005 (“Listing Date”)
but in any event not later than five years from the
Listing Date.

24.

(i)

20,160,000

12%

1
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24. Share-based Payment (cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme (cont’d)

(i) Pre-IPO share option scheme (cont’d)

Details of the specific categories of options are as
follows:

Exercise
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period price

HK$

Executive directors 8 September 2005 13 April 2006 13 April 2006 to 0.80
12 October 2010

0.80

Senior management 8 September 2005 13 April 2006 13 April 2006 to 0.80
12 October 2010

0.80

Other employees and 8 September 2005 13 April 2006 13 April 2006 to 0.56
senior management 12 October 2010

0.56

If the options remain unexercised after a period of 5
years from the date of grant, the options expire.
Options are forfeited on the date which is 3 months
after the date on which the eligible employee ceases
to be an employee of the Group.

24.

(i)
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2006 2005

Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average

share exercise share exercise
options price options price

HK$ HK$

Outstanding at the
beginning of the year 20,160,000 0.72 —

Granted during the year — — 20,160,000 0.72
Exercised during the year (1,585,000) 0.56 —

Outstanding at the end of
the year 18,575,000 0.73 20,160,000 0.72

Exercisable at the end of the year 18,575,000 0.73 20,160,000 0.72

The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for share options exercised during the year
was HK$0.75. The options outstanding at the end
of the year have a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 3.79 years (2005: 4.79 years) and
the exercise prices range from HK$0.56 to HK$0.80
(2005: HK$0.56 to HK$0.80). In 2005, options were
granted on 8 September 2005. The estimated fair
value of options on this date were HK$2,761,473.
The amounts of HK$411,283 and HK$2,350,190
were recognised in 2006 and 2005 respectively.

24. Share-based Payment (cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme (cont’d)

(i) Pre-IPO share option scheme (cont’d)

Details of the share options outstanding during the
year are as follows:

24.

(i)

0.75

3.79
4.79

0.56 0.80
0.56 0.80

2,761,473

2,350,190 411,283
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24. Share-based Payment (cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme (cont’d)

(i) Pre-IPO share option scheme (cont’d)

These fair values were calculated using the Black-
Scholes pricing model. The inputs into the model
were as follows:

2006 2005

Weighted average share price — HK$0.80
Weighted average exercise price — HK$0.72
Expected volatility for exercise 0.80

price of HK$0.80 — 25.97%
Expected volatility for exercise 0.56

price of HK$0.56 — 24.71%
Expected life — 5 years
Risk free rate for exercise 0.80

price of HK$0.80 — 3.5%
Risk free rate for exercise 0.56

price of HK$0.56 — 3.34%
Expected dividend yield — 3%

The expected volatil ity is assumed to be the
adjusted average historical volatil it ies of the
comparable companies in the industry.

(ii) Post-IPO share option scheme
Pursuant to the written resolution passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 8 September 2005,
the post-IPO share option scheme (“Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) was approved.

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
is to enable the Company to recognise the
contributions of the participants to the Group and
to motivate the participants to continuously work to
the benef i t  of  the Group by offer ing to the
participants and opportunity to have personal
interest in the share capital of the Company. Eligible
participants of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
(“Participants”) include employee (including
directors of the Company), consultants and/or
advisers who in the sole discretion of the directors
of the Company have contributed or will contribute
to the Group.

24.

(i)

Black-Scholes

(ii)
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24. Share-based Payment (cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme (cont’d)

(ii) Post-IPO share option scheme (cont’d)

The overall limit on the number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and other
share option scheme of the Group (including the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme) must not exceed 30%
of the shares of the Company in issue from time to
time. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable
by the grantee upon acceptance of an option.

Under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options, at its discretion, to
Participants to subscribe for such number of new
shares at any exercise price determined by the
board of directors of the Company in its absolute
discretion. The price will be the highest of (i) the
closing price of the share of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant of the option (which must be a business
day), (ii) the average closing prices of the share of
the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option
and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company
on the date of the option.

An option under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time
during the period to be determined and notified by
the board of directors of the Company to each
grantee which period of time shall commence on
the expiration of three years of the date of grant of
the option and expire on such date as determined
by the board of directors of the Company provided
that the option may not be exercised after the
expiration of 10 years from the date of grant of the
option.

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme does not require
a minimum period for which an option must be held
nor a performance target which must be achieved
before an option can be exercised, unless the board
of directors of the Company otherwise determined
and stated in the offer of the grant of options to the
grantee.

During the year, no option (2005: Nil) was granted
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

24.

(ii)

30%
1

(i)

(ii)

(iii)



78

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2006

Annual Report 2006 2006

JF H
ousehold

 Furnishing
s Lim

ited

25. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

2006 2005

HK$ HK$

Investments in subsidiaries 42,967,020 42,967,020
Due from subsidiaries 45,637,112 44,658,602
Other current assets 9,097 258,166
Due to subsidiaries (3,814,989) (3,814,989)
Other current liabilities (729,497) (1,368,461)
Due to directors (10,000) (10,000)

NET ASSETS 84,058,743 82,690,338

Share capital 1,695,850 1,680,000
Reserves 82,362,893 81,010,338

TOTAL EQUITY 84,058,743 82,690,338

25.
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26. Reserves
Company

Employee
share-based Proposed

Share Contributed compensation Retained final
Note premium surplus reserve profits dividend Total

(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(a) (b) (c)
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

New shares issued
on reorganisation

23(ii) & (iv) (20,000 ) — — — — (20,000 )
Capitalisation of

share premium
23(v) (1,240,000 ) — — — — (1,240,000 )

Shares issued on
placing

23(vi) 33,180,000 — — — — 33,180,000
Share issue expenses

(10,326,471 ) — — — — (10,326,471 )
Effect of reorganisation

— 42,967,020 — — — 42,967,020
Recognition of

share-based payment
24(i) — — 2,350,190 — — 2,350,190

Profit for the year
— — — 14,099,599 — 14,099,599

2005 proposed final
dividend

11 — — — (9,488,920 ) 9,488,920 —

At 31 December 2005
21,593,529 42,967,020 2,350,190 4,610,679 9,488,920 81,010,338

At 1 January 2006
21,593,529 42,967,020 2,350,190 4,610,679 9,488,920 81,010,338

Share issued on exercise
of shares options

23(vii) 1,249,539 — (377,789 ) — — 871,750
Recognition of

share-based payment
24(i) — — 411,283 — — 411,283

Dividend paid
11 — — — — (9,488,920 ) (9,488,920 )

Profit for the year
— — — 9,558,442 — 9,558,442

2006 proposed final
dividend

11 — — — (8,309,665 ) 8,309,665 —

At 31 December 2006
22,843,068 42,967,020 2,383,684 5,859,456 8,309,665 82,362,893

26.
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26. Reserves (cont’d)
Company (cont’d)
Note:

(a) Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association
and provided that immediately following the distribution
or dividend the Company is able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(b) The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result
of the Corporate Reorganisation and represents the excess
of the then combined net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange therefor.

(c) The employee share-based compensation reserve of the
Company and the Group arises on the grant of share
options of employees under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme. Further information about share-based payment
to employees set out in note 24 to the financial statements.
The fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Company recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payment in note 3(k) to
the financial statements.

26.

(a)

(b)

(c)

24
3(k)
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27. Subsidiaries
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at the balance sheet date
are as follows:

27.

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and
establishment Attributable paid up capital/

Company and operation interest registered capital Principal activities

Directly held

JF Asia British Virgin 100% Ordinary shares Investment holding
Islands US$300

100% 300

Indirectly held

JF Household Furnishings British Virgin 100% Ordinary shares Investment holding
(BVI) Ltd. (“JF BVI”) Islands US$100

100% 100

Keylink Technology Limited British Virgin 100% Ordinary shares Investment holding
(“Keylink”) Islands US$100

100% 100

JF Household Furnishings British Virgin 100% Ordinary shares Investment holding
(Macau) Holdings Ltd. Islands US$100
(“JF Macau Holdings”)

100% 100

JF Ningbo * # PRC 100% Registered capital Manufacturing and sale
US$7,000,000 of furnishings and

home products and
accessories

* # 100%
7,000,000

JF Metal * # PRC 100% Registered capital Manufacturing and
US$140,000 processing of stainless

steel rods and other
accessories

* # 100%
140,000

JF Furniture * # PRC 100% Registered capital Manufacturing and sale
US$2,000,000 of wooden furnishings

and home products
* # 100%

2,000,000

JF Household Furnishings Macau 100% Ordinary shares General trading
Macao Commercial MOP100,000
Offshore Limited #

100%
 # 100,000

# Statutory financial statements not audited by RSM Nelson
Wheeler

* Wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.

#

*
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28. Contingent Liabilities
At 31 December 2006, the Group had contingent liabilities
in respect of bills of exchange discounted to a bank with
recourse amounting to approximately HK$900,000 (2005:
HK$Nil).

29. Commitments

(a) Operating lease commitments
At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for leasehold land and buildings
falling due as follows:

28.

900,000

29.

(a)

2006 2005

HK$ HK$

Within one year 42,887 —
In the second

to fifth years, inclusive 10,396 —

53,283 —

(b) Capital commitments (b)

2006 2005

HK$ HK$

Construction of the factory
premises and acquisition
of plant and machinery

— Contracted but — 
not provided for 15,736,872 1,725,101
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30. Related Party Transactions
In addition to those transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, during the year, in
the normal course of business, the Group had the following
transactions with its related parties, of which certain
directors of the Company are also directors of these
companies or held beneficial interests therein, as follows:

2006 2005
HK$ HK$

Purchases from
— — 

(Yuyao Kongshun Modern
 Printing Services Co. Ltd.) 34,649 56,766

Sales to
— Zhejiang Shuaikang — 12,178,261 13,235,361

Leasing charges paid to
— Yuyao Jiefeng — 24,752 77,462

Processing charges paid to
— Yuyao Jiefeng — 90,607 285,643

Purchases from
— Yuyao Jiefeng — 263,533 —

License fee paid to
— A.C.R. Equipment Supplies — 

Limited (“A.C.R. Equipment”) 54,000 43,500

Administrative charges received from
— Yuyao Jiefeng — 2,517 —
— — 

(Yuyao Jiefeng Fan
and Air-conditioning Co. Ltd.) 12,689 —

— A.C.R. Equipment — 4,369 —

Rental expenses paid to
— Senior management — 42,000 —

30.

The executive directors, Mr. Yan Siu Wai and Mr. Leung
Kwok Yin, have beneficial interests in the above companies
except for Zhejiang Shuaikang. The executive director, Mr.
Bao Jisheng, has the beneficial interests in Zhejiang
Shuaikang.
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30. Related Party Transactions (cont’d)
During the year, the Group advanced cash to the following
related parties which were fully settled as at the balance
sheet date. The cash advanced to these related parties
are interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed terms of
repayment, except for administrative charges at 6% to
6.44% per annum to the following parties:

Maximum balance Balance

Total
Name of advanced At 1 January At 31 December
related parties during the year 2006 2005 2006 2006

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

— A.C.R. Equipment — 1,000,000 1,000,000 — — —

— Yuyao Jiefeng — 3,465,347 1,284,998 1,452,136 19,241 139,920

— — 
 (Yuyao Jiefeng Fan and
 Air-conditioning Co. Ltd.) 3,952,886 2,376,238 — — —

30.

6%
6.44%

8

31.

4.9
11

32.

In addition, the Group advanced the cash from the following
related parties which were fully repaid at the balance sheet
date.

Total advanced during the year
Name of related parties

HK$

Yuyao Jiefeng 1,980,198

2,574,257
(Yuyao Kongshun Modern

Printing Services Co. Ltd.)

3,366,337
(Ningbo Xinlong Air-Conditioner
Equipment Co., Ltd.)

In the opinion of the directors, these transactions with the
related parties have been conducted on normal commercial
terms and the terms are fair and reasonable.

During the year,  the key management personnel
compensation paid by the Group were disclosed in note 8
to the financial statements.

31. Events after the Balance Sheet Date
On 26 March 2007, the Company proposed to declare a
final dividend of HK4.9 cents per ordinary share to its
shareholders, as further detailed in note 11 to the financial
statements.

32. Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2007.




